ASSOCIATES
INDIA ' CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT

To the Members of Summit Developments Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Summit Developments Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss and changes in equity for
the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. OQur responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our apinian.

Other Information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,"including the accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due te fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit-evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of
ot detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting



from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)() of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicabie,
related safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the central
Government in terms of Sections 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
matiers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

2, Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those boaoks.

aldnce Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive income),
wfement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
ement with the books of account.



. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the diréctors are disqualified as on 31st
March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — refer note no.21 to the financial statements.

ii. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foresecable losses other than those recognised in the books
of accounts.

iti. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The Management of the Company has represented that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, that the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested any funds (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries'™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

b) The Management of the Company has represented that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, other than that as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, that the Company has
not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any puarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries,

¢) Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule (e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31st March
2025, and therefore, compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable.

vi. The company, in respect of financial years commencing from 1st April, 2024, has used
such accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year
for all transactions recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not been
tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
irements for record retention.

~



3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not paid managerial remuneration to its directors during the financial year and hence provision of
section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Company,

for NSYM & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 0100728

C S Mani
Partner
Membership No: 036508

UDIN: &5 036508 BMKNWN 5623

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 23 May 2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Summit Developments Private Limited (‘the
Company’) for the year ended 31 March 2025, we report that:

(1)
a)
(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment (Classified as Investment Property

under Ind AS 40),

(B) The: Company does not have any intangible asset hence reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, investment property have been
physically verified by the management during the year which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties as disclosed under Investment Property in the
financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.
e) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no proceedings has

been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder.

(i)

a) According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, the Company conducts physical vetification of its inventory on a
yeatly basis and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate.
No material discrepancies were noticed upon such verification.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and based on our
examination of the books of accounts in the normal course of audit, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital litits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate, from bank or
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(i)

(iv)

™

(vi)

(vii)

a) According to the information and explanation provided to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, the Company has not provided any loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(iii)(a) and (b) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanation provided to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, the Company has not granted any loan or advance on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment to Companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or
other parties . Thus, reporting under paragraph 3(iii)(c), (d) and (e) is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
advanced loans, made investments, provided guatantees or furnished securities in respect of which
provision of Section 185 and Section 186 are applicable. Accordingly, requirement to report on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or has any amounts which are deemed to be deposits to
which the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act rules
framed thereunder and the directions issued by the RBI are applicable. Accordingly, requirement to
report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under subsection
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company.
Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Goods and Services tax, Cess
and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company
with the appropriate authorities though there has been a delay in some cases

According to the information and explanations give to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Duty of Customs, Goods and
Services tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable



(viii)

(ix)

(x)

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
Goods and Service Tax, custom duty, and cess which have not been deposited of account of any
dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 196])

{a) Based on our audit procedure and on the information and explanation given by the management,
loans amounting to Rs 1519.92 Million are repayable on demand and terms and conditions for
payment of interest for borrowings amounting to Rs 27.60 Million have not been stipulated.
According to the information and explanations given to us such loans have not been demanded
for repayment during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Company is
not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or Financial Institution or other lenders.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not borrowed any money by the way term loans during the year. Hence this clause is not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overali examination of the
balance sheet of the company, we repott that no funds have been raised by the company, Hence
this clause is not applicable.

{(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the company/ examination of the cash flow statement of the Company, we report
that the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under Companies Act, 2013.

(0 According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable,

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on audit procedure
performed, no money was raised by the way of public issue/follow-on-offer (including debt
instruments) and reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.




(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

shares or convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3{x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(a) Based upon audit procedure performed and information and explanation given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been
noticed or reported during the year

(b) Based upon audit procedure performed and information and explanation given by the
management, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in ADT -4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
company during the year.

The company is not a Nidhi Co. and therefore clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties entered into by the Company during the year
are in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act of 2013, wherever applicable and the details
thereof have been disclosed in Note 24 of the Financial Statement as required by the Indian
Accounting standards and Companies Act, 2013. Further, the provisions of section 177 of the Act are
not applicable as the Company and accordingly the requirement to report under Clause 3 (xiii) of the
Order in so far it relates to Section 177 is not applicable to the Company.

In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an Internal Audit system
and is not required to have an Internal Audit System as per Companies Act 2013 and hence clause
3(xiv)(a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanatiéns given to us, in our opinion during the year the company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

{(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) Based on the audit procedure performed, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

ed’in audit procedure performed, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as
efined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.



(xviD)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(d) Based in audit procedure performed, the Company or any of the companies in the group are not
Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India,

The Company has incurred cash loss of ¥ 102.62 Millions in the current financial year and X 154.38
Millions in the preceding financial year,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly clause 3(xviii)
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of assurance provided by
the holding company and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities and assurances provided other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As the Company does not meet the criteria specified in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company is not required to spend any amount on activities related to corporate social responsibility
for the year ended March 31, 2025, Hence reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)b) is not
applicable.

Jor NS VM & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm registratipn number: 0100728 s=

Partner
Membership No: 036508

A
@

C S Mani

UDIN: 25036508 BMKNWNE 623

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 23™ May 2025
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Report on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Annexure — B to the Independent auditor’s report of even date on the financial statements of
Summit Developments Private Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Summit Developments Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the
ICAT”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as the “Act™). '

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain rcasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

migggperaent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
A
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We believe that the audit evidence, we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company.

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2025, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”,

for NS VM & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 0100728

G C S Mani
Partner
Membership No. 036508

UDIN: &50%6508 B MKNWNS623

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 23" May 2025



Summit Developments Private Limited

CIN: UT0200KA2011FTCO57054

Balance Qileet a5 at March 31, 2028

(All amounts in 7 millions unless otherwise stated)

N As at As at
e, March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-¢arrent assels
Investment property 4 1,107.66 1,150.05
Investment property under development 3 16.50 825
Financial assets
- Investments 6 - 378.66
Other non-financial assets 7 1.38 <
‘Total non-eurrent assets 1,125.54 1,536.96
Current assets
Inventories 8 831,75 818,92
Financial assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 9 0.20 047
= Other financial asssts 10 . T7a3 7.33
839.28 826.72
1,964.82 2,363.68
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11 020 0.10
Other équity 12 396.09 (12.618.94)
39629 {12,618.84)
Current labilitics
Financial Kabilities
- Borrowings 13 1,519.92 13,375.12
- Trade payable
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.34 -
Total owmstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 4.94 -
enrerprises
- Other financial liabilities 15 35.26 1.591.56
Other current liabilities 16 §.07 15.84
1,568.53 14,982.52
]
1,964.82 1,363.68
Materinl accounting policies 3

The notes referred to above form an integral pait of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for NSVM & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

" Firm registration number; 0100728

~

G.C.S Mani
Partner
Membership number: 036308

Place; Bengalury
Date: May 23, 2025

Jor and an hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Summit Developments Private Limited

HMactenda

(-
Rajesk Kaimal
Director
DIN: 03158687

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 23, 2025

Shailendra K S
Drirector
DIN: 07984647

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 23, 2023

.



Summit Developments Private Limited

CIN: UT0200KA201IPTCO57054

Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ millions unless otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Iocome
Other income 17 356.24 -
Tatal income : 356.24 -
Expenses
Other expenses 18 10.63 111.62
Finance costs 19 15051 150.68
Total expenses 16114 262.30
Profit / (Loss) before tax 19510 (262.30)
Tax expense 24 - E
= Current tax ; g -
= Deferred tax charge / (credit) = .
Profit/ (Loss) for the year 195.10 (262.30)
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax. 195.10 : (262,30)
Exceptional ltems
Frovision for impairment of investment - (117.58)
‘T'otal comprehensive loss for the vear 195.10 (379.88)
Earning / (Loss) per share (equity shares, par value of Rs 10 each)
- Basic (Rs.) 22 16,305.42 (37,608.61)
- Diluted (Rs.) 22 1,567.80 (16,111,73)

Material aceounting policies 3

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial siatements.

As per our report of even date attached .

for NSVM & Associates Jer and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors of

Chartered Accouptants 1 Suminit Developments Private Limited

Firm registration number: 0100725

}j‘.&\w !
Ay~

G.C.S Mani Rajesh Kaimal Shailendra K §

Partner Director Dircetor

Membership number: 036508 DIN; 03153687 DIN: 07984647

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengalumu Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 23, 2025 Date: May 23,2025 Date: May 23, 2025



Summit Developments Private Limited

CIN: U70200KA2011PTC057054

Statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit{Lass) for the year 195.10 (379.88)
Adjustm ents:
Raversal of fair valuation on financial liability (297.71) -
Provision for impairment on investment - .+ 117.58
Logs on sale of investment 245 -
Fair valuation loss on derivative financial liability - 66.46
Profit on sale of investment property (58.53) .
Interest expenses 150.51 150.68
Qperating cash flow before working capital changes (6.18) {45.16)
Changes in working capital
Other current liabilities (7.77) 0.71
Inventory (12.83) (7.11)
Other current financial liabilities (1.33) (107.28)
Trade payables 5.28 -
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations (25.05) (158.84)
Income taxes (paid)/ refund, net (1.38) -
Net cash generated from/ {used in) operating activities (26.43) (158.84)
Cash flow from investing activities
Soft cost capitalisation on investment property - 23.67
Soft cost capitalisation on investment property under development (8.25) 1709
Sale of investment in subsidiacy 37620 -
Sale of investment property 100.92 -
Net cash generated from investing activities 468.97 40.75
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (1,705.25) (15.08)
Inter corporale deposit (paid)received 1,262.54 128.78
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (442.71) 113.70
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (0:27) (4.39)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.47 ‘4,86
Cash and cash equivalents at the ead of the Year 0.20 047
Components of eash and cash equivalents (refer note 9)
Balance with banks
- in current accounts 0.20 0,47
0,20 0.47

Malterial accounting policies

The notes refermed to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our teport of even date attached

for NSWVM & Associates

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Summit Developments Private Limited

g 3Bhtlondst,

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration

Rajesh Kaimal Shailendra K §
Partner Director Direstor
Membership number: 036508 DIN: 03158687 DIN: 07984647
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Datc: May 23, 2025

Date: May 23, 2025

Date; May 23, 2025



Summit Developments Private Limited

CIN: U70200KA2011PTC057054

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in T millions unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital

i) As at March 31, 2025

Balance as at April 01, 2023 Changes during the year Balance as at March 31, 2025
0.10 0.10 0.20
it) As at March 31, 2024
Ralance as at April 01,2023 Changes during the year Balance as at March 31, 2024
0.10 0.00 0.10
Refer note l-i
(B) Other Equity*
Particulars Securities premium’ Remilned Total other equity
earnings
Balance as at April 01, 2023 139.46 (12,378.52) (12,235.06)
Loss for the year - (379.88) {379.88)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 139.46 (12,758.40) (12,618.94)
Balance as at April 01,2024 139.46 (12,758.40) (12,618.94)
On account of conversion of Compulsory )
convertible debenture 12,819.93 - 12,819.93
Profit for the year ' - 195.10 195.10
Balance as at March 31, 2025 12,959.39 {12,563.30) 396.09
*Refer note 12
Material acconnting policies 3

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
for NSVM & Associates
Chartered Accountants

" Firm registration number;

Jor and on behalf of the Boatd of Directors of
Summit Developments Private Limited

Ahalondoa

-

G.C.S Mani Rfllesh Kaimal ‘Shailendra K §
P Director Drirector
artner
DIN: 03158687 DIN: 07984647

Membership number: 036508

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 23, 2025

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 23, 2025

Place: Bengalury
Date: May 23, 2025
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Company background .

Summit Developments Private Limited ("SDFL" or "the Company™) was incorporated on L1 Febtuary 2011 a8 & private limited company under the provisions of the

Compmcs Act, 1956, The registered office of the Company is at Bengalury, India. The Company is engaged in the business of real estate development. The
y hias invested in a subsédiary (Saphire Realtors Private Limited .

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements-have been prepared in acoordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Tnd AS) as defined in Rule 2{1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Aceounting Srandards} Rules, 2015 preseribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Ind AS"), 1ead with relevant rules issued thereunder and other
aceounting principles zenerally accepted in India, and other relevant provisions of the Act.

I and pr {ation currency
These financial statements are presented jn Indian Rupees, which is also the Company's functional currency. All the amounts have been rounded -off to the nearest
rodllions, unless otherwise indleated.

Basis of messnrement

The finanzial statements have been prepared on the historical sosl busia excapt for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair values,

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheat imed om ewrrent’ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is!

« Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

- Held primarlly for the putpose of trading. &

= Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liabifiry for at Jeast twelve months after the reporing period.
All other assets are classified 23 noo-current.

A liability is current when

- [tiz expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

= [tis held primarily for the purpose of irading. .
- [tis due to be sertled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right 1o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve monibis after the reporiing pericd.

The Company ¢lassifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ave classified as non-current sssets and liabilities,-

Operating cycle:
The operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

Use of estimates and judgements *

In preparing these fi in! 3 £ has made judg: , estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounis of assers, Liabilities, income end expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates, .
Estimates and underlying ptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revizions to accounting estimates are recopnised prospectively,

Use of going concern assumptions

The Company's financia! statcments have been prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding the fact that the Company’s current habilities exceeded ils
current assets by Rs, 729,23 millions a3 at that date. The appropriateness of the going concem assumption on the basis of which these financial statements have
been prepared is based on financial support committed to the Company by the holding company.

These financis! statements, therefore, do not include any adjushments releting to recoverabifity and classification of asset ts and elassifieation of liabilities that
may be necessary if the Company was unable to continue as a going concern.

Material accounting policies

Thig note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preg ion of these i ial siat iz, These
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

policies have been istently applied 1o

Recognitlon of dividend income, interest income and sxpense

a) Dividend income
Dividend 1ncome 15 recognised in profit or logs on the dote ons which the Company's right to receive payment is established.

b} Inferest Income and eapense
Interest income or expense is recognived wing the cifective inlorest rale methed,
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly d.ismuan esticnated future cash

ar i gh the d life of the fi 4al ingrrument o

* = the gross caxrying wnount of a financial asset or

3,02

- the amortised cost of financial Lability,
In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied 10 the pross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit impaired) or to
the amortised coat of the [iability. However, for financial assets that have become l;rtdlt-mpautd subsequent to |nma] recognition, interest income |5 caleulared by
applying the effective interest rate to the amontised cost of the financial asset, If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest i reverls
to the gross basis,

Financial Instruments

L Recognition and initial messurement



Summit Developmenis Private Limtted
CIN: UTO200KAZ 011 PTCOS7054
Naotes to the financial statements

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial asssts and financial ligbilities are inilially
recognised when the Comnpany becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial assets or financial liability ie initially mescured at fair vahe plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are
direcily attributable to its sequisition or isme.
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Flnancial Isstruments (cc;lliuued)

fii. Classification and subsequent mesasurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a linancial asset is classified as measured at,

- amortised wost

« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) - debt investrnent:

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) = equity investnent; or
= Fair value through profit & less- (FVIFL)

Financial assets are not raclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes ite busi model for managing
financial assets, '

A financial nseet is measured at amortised cost if it meets both the following condztiens and is not designated as at FVTPL:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to bold ascets 1o collect contraztual cash flows; and

- the contrattual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are salely payments of principal and interest vn the principal amount
outstanding,

A debt instrument i measured at FYOCTf it meets both of the following conditisns and is net desigrated as at FYTPL!

- the asset iz held'in a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial azsets; and

- the contactusl terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and i on the pringipal t
oulstanding,
On initizd recognition of an equily investment (hat is not held for treding, the Company may it bly eleet to present subssuent changes in i t's fair

value in OCI (designated as FYOCI = equity investmant). The election is made on an investment-bry-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVQCI as described above are measured ot FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial asests.
On initie! recognition, the Company may irrevecably designate a Financial asset that otherwise meets the requi to be d at amertised cost or at FYOCT
as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. i

Financial assels; Business paodel

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the businesa mode! in which a financial asset is held &t a portfolic level because this best reflests the way the,
business iz managed and information is provided to the management, The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolis and the aperation of those policies in practice. These include whether management's strategy focuses on eaming
contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial asset to the duratien of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising ¢ash flows through the sale of the assets,

- how the performance of the portfolio is evalvated and repented to the Company’s management,

- the rigk that effects the performance of the business mode! (and the financial asset held within that business model) 2nd how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based an the fair value of the assets ged ar the ctual cash flows
collected; and

- the frequency, velume and timing of sales of the financial assets in priee periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about firture sales astivity.

Transfers of financia] assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify For derccognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the
C ‘s imui 2n of the assets.

Financtal assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on fair value basis are measured at FWTPL,
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&M Fi ial Lw\-l s i d)
ids Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Fimancial assets: A et tractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and i

For the purpose of this assesament, 'peincipal’ is defined a3 the fair value of the ﬁnmcla! asaetocmuml. vecogmnm. Taterest' is defined as consideration for the time
volue of money and for eredit risk associated with the prineipal ling during a p lar period of Hime and for other basic bending risks and costs (e,
Hquidity rigk and administrative costs), as well as profit morgin.

To agsess whathar the contractual cash flows 2re solely ts of principal and i , the Company conaiders the coatractual terms of the insteusnect, This

includes asseesing whether the financial asset containg a mlracm:ﬂ betm thra.l could cb:mae the timing or amount of contractual cash flowe such that it would not
meet this condition. [ maling this assessmeant, the Company considers:

= ¢nnlingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

.lemda‘tmyadjunlﬁw | coupon rate, including variable interest rate futures;

- prepay and ext fi ; and

= terens that limity the Company's claim to cash flows from spesificd assets (g noa=recourse feature)

A prepaytnent feature 3% congistent with the solely payment of principal and interast criterion if the prey amount substantially represents unpaid ameunts of
principal and ‘interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may inctude reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract
Additionally, for a financial assel acquired at a significant discount er premium to its conlractual par amount, a feature that permits or. requires prepeyment at an

that substantially repi the cont: | par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional

compensation for early termination) is treated a¢ consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant ot initial recognition.

Fimancial assets: Subsequent measurement and geins ond losses

Financial assels al FVIPL :

These azcets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net paine and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or lose.
Financial assets a1 evnortised cost :

These assets are subsequently d a1 tised cost ysing the effective interest method. The amortised <ost is reduced by impainment losses. I i 3
foreign exthange gaing and lostes and unpainment are recognised in profit or [oss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
Debit vesiments at FVYOCL

These assets are subsequently mensured at fair value. Interest income wunder the effective interest methed, foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
and Joss. Other net gaina and losses are recognised in OCL On derecognition, gaing and losses sceumulared in OCT are reclassified to profitor loss.

Equity investnents ar FVOCT;

These assets are subssquently measured of fair value, Dividends are recognised as 1 profit or lass unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investrnent. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financiol Babilifies : Classification, subsequent measuremens and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, ae it is
a denivative or it is designated as such on initfal recognition. Financial liabilities ai FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gaing and lagses, including any interest
expense, are recopnised in profit or loss Other financial liabilities are subseq d at amortised cost using the effective i hod. I T

and foreign exchange paing or losses are recognized in profit or lost. Any gain or foxsan derecognition is alse recognised in profit and loss.

iii. Derecognitinn

Fingncial Assely
The Company derecognises a financtal assel when the coniraciual rights to the cash flaws from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to seceive the
contractual cash flows in a tr ton an which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset sre transferred or in which the Company

neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of the ewnership and does not retzin control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters iito transactions whereby it transfers assels recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantielly all the risks and rewards of
the transferred asaets, the transferred assets are not derecognised,
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3.05

3.04

3.08

Material ting policies (continued)
Financial Instruments (continued)

k. Derecognition {continued)

Fiheanctal Liabilittes

The Company derecognises a financial ligbility when the contractus) obligations are discharged or eancelled, or sxpire

The Company derecognises a finaneial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified tems are substantially different. In this case a
new financial liability based on the madified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the camrying amount of the extinguished liability and the new
financial liahility with madified terms iz recognised in profil and loss.

. Olfseltiog
Finangial asasts and liabilitics are offeet and the net preaented in the bal sheet when, and only when, the Company cumrently hes a legally enforceable
right ta set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a et basis or to realise the eset and settle the liability simultancously.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a somponen! of a hybrid (mell‘l.ﬂ‘l} instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract — with the edfect that some of the cash
Naws of the combined instrument vary in 3 wey similar to a stend-alons derivative. An cmbedded derivative causes some o all of the cash flows that otherwise
would be required by the contract 1o be modified according o & specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rae, index of
prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific 1 a party to the
caniract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the teamns of the conwact that significanly modifies the cash flows that woukl otherwise be required
or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value Geough profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract containg a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the group does not sep bedded derivatives, Rather, it spplies the
classification requirements contsined in Tnd AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host are ted for as separat
derivatives and recorded at fair vatue if their economic charseteristics and risks are not elusely relted 1o those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. Thess emhedded deri are d ot fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss, unless desipnated as effective hedging instruments.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchangs differences relating to foreign cumency bomowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment 1o interest costs) incumed in cormestion with the borrowing of funds. Bomrewing costs directly attributable lo acquisition or construction of an nsset
which ily take a substantial period of time to get ready For their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset, Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Investment Property

i. Recognition and measarement

I properties are | imhally at cost, Jnc.ludlng transaction costs, Subsequent to initial recogmition, investment properties are stated at cost Jess

securnulated depreciation and pail tloss, if eny. The cost of the assets not ready for their intended usc before such date, ace disclosed as Property

under development.

Suhwquent mendil:we on investment properlies is .ud&ul 1o the canying amount of the asset when it is probable thar future economic benefits, in excess of
i dard of perfy of the existing asset, will flow to the Comp All other subsequent expenditure is recognized as an expense in the

pmodmwh:chms | W!mnm property is disposed of, the lting gain or loss recognized in the Staternent of profit and loss is the difference

net di | p ds and the carying amount of the propesty.

The fair value u‘l‘lmunem property is disclosed in the note 4, Fair values is determined by an independent valuer who holds a recognized and relevant professional
qualificaticon and has recent experience in the location and category of the invesiment property being valued,

Ii. Transition toInd AS s
On transition ta Ind°AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying values as at 1 April 2015 under previous GAAP of all its property, plant and
equipment recopnised a8 at | April 2015, measured as per previous GAAF, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment.

fil. Depreciation

Pursuant to this policy, Management's estimates of useful life of the following major asseis are as follows:

Asset Management estimate of useful life Useful life a3 per Schedule [T of Companies Act,

2013

Buildi 5-60 years 50 years

Plant and machinery 15 years 15 years
{Fumiture and fixtures 10-15 years 10 years
| Elestrical equipment's 10 years 15 years

Depreciation method, useful Tives and residual values are reviewed a1 each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technica! evaluation and

advice, the believes that its estimates of useful lives as given sbove best represent the peried over which management expects to use these

Bssets

-]

Pro~rata deprecietion is provided on properties purchased or sold during the veas/period.
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3.06 Leases

A contract is, or containg, a tease if the contract conveys the right to contro! the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for mnsndemhm_

Company recognises righl~of=use asset representing ifs right to use the underlying asset for the lense term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-
use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the instial measurement of the lease Liability, adjusted for any lease payments made at or bedors the
commencement date, less any lease incentives recerved, plus any initia! direct costs incurred and an estimate of the cosls to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underly ing asset or site on which it 1s located

Vet o - 1

The right-of-tse assels i3 subsequently measured at cost less ac i dep d impairment losses, if sny and adjusted for any remeasursment
of the lease lishility. The right-of-use assets i3 deprecizted vsing the straight-line mathad from the ¢ ement date over the shorter of lease term or usefal life of
right=nf=use asser Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there i3 any indication that their carrying amounts may net be recoverable - Impairment
loss, if any, izrecognised in the Statement of profit and loge

The Yeasge linbility is initially’ measured at the present \m.lue'ocl‘ﬂle lease payments that are not paid ‘at the t date, di ted vsing the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily d ined, the i.m tal barrowing rate applicable to the entity, Genesally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. For leases with r y similar <k fisties, the Company on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the
incremental barrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental bort uwmg rate for the portfolio as a whele,

The Company recognises the t of the re-n ent of ease Liability a5 an adjustonent to the right-of-use assel Wbcm the cnrrymg amount of the right-of-
use zsaet 'is reduced to zoro and there is o further reduction i the of the lease liability, the C Y reEoET any 1 of the re-
mensurement in profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to recognise nght-ol-use assets and lease liakilites for shor-term leases of all assees that have a Jease term of 12 months or less and

leases of love-value assets. The ©

" L' L

the lense | ts inted with these leases as an expense on a strai ght-line hasis over the lease term.

4

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

Atinception of an arrangetnent, it is detenmined whether the arr t is or ins a lease, Al inceplion or on t of the ar t that containg a
lease, the p and other iderati quired by such 2n arrangement are separated into those for other elements cn the basis of their relative fair values,
Assels hald under leases

Leases in which the Company does rot transfer substantially all the risks and tewerds of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income
anging is ted for on 2 straight-line basis over the lease term, The Jease ten is the llable period together with any further term for which the tenant

has the option to continue the le-ass, where, st the inception of the Jease, the Company is reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option. Leases are
elassified 23 finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under
finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company™s net investment in the leasas,

Avitial direct cosls
Initial disect costs such as brokerage expenses incurred q:eci._f'tcally to eam revenues from an operating lease are
and recognised over the tease term on the same basis as rentz] income.

d to the carrying amount of leased asset

3,07 Taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. I is recognised in pmﬁt or lass except to the extent that it relates 1o a business combination or to an item recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax pavable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax pavable or reveivable in
respect ofpmriaus years The amount of current tax reflects the bast estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after 1dering the inty, if
any, related to income taxes, kt is measnred using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date. i
Cmemtaxmetsan&cumntmlmbtlmumcﬂunnly iff there ie 2 legally enforceable right to set off the recognised ts, and it 13 intended to realise the
asset and settle the hability on anet basis or simultaneously.
Deferred tax
Defacred tax iz recopnised in respect of temparary dif bety the carrying amounts of agsets and liabilities for the financiol reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taation purposes, Deferred tax is also tecognised in respect of carried forward 1ax Josses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:
= tempotary difference arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in o ion that i not a business combination and that affects neither nccounting
nor taxahle prafit ar lose at the time of the traneaction;

- - temparacy differences related 10 investrments in subsidiaries, iates and joint 1o to the extent that the Company 13 able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary diff and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future..

Defecred tux assets are recopnised to the cxtent that it ia probable that fature taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of
unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profie may not be available. Thetefore, in any case of a histery of recent kasses, the Cempany recognises a
deferred tax asset only 1o the extent that it has sufficient taxabl parary differences or there is convineing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which such deferred tax asset cen be realised. Deferred tax nssets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at ou»h reporting date and are
recognizsd roduoed to the exdent that it is probable/ no longar probable respectively that the reluted tax benefit will be realised.
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Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the Hability is settled, based on the Jaws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date,
The measucement of the deferred tax reflects tax consequences thet would flow fram the manner in which the Company expects, a¢ the reporting dale, 1o recover or
settle the earrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Defarred tax assers and liabilities are offsct if there is & legally enforesable right to offset current tax liabilities and assels, and they relate to income laxss levied b)'
the same tax authority on the samie taxable entity, or on a dififerent tax entities, but they intend Lo setils current tax fiabilities and assets vn 3 net basis or their tax
a3sets and liabilities will be realised simultancously.

3.08 Provisions q
A provision is recognised if, as a result of past event, the Campany has a present legal ar construetive chligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
thet an cutflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation. Previgions are determined by dizcounting the expected future cach flows (reprasenting
the best estimate of the expenditure requited o settle tha present obligation at the balznce shest date) al a pre-fix rate that reflects current market assescments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount iz recagnised as finance cost, Expected future operating losses are nol

provided for,

Onerous contracts

A Canfract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company frem the contract are lower than the unavoidable cogt of
meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an cnerous conlract is measured ai the present value of tha lower of the expested cost of terminating the
coatract and the expected net cos! of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision 13 made, the Company recognises any impeirment loss on the assets
associated with the contract.

3.02 Cash and cash squivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, depasits held at call with financial institwtions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or Less that are readily cunvm'blem lngwn amounts of cash and which are subject to an ingignificant risk of changes in value, aod bank overdrafls.

3,10 Cash Jow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby ret profit / {loss) before tax is adfusted for the effects of ransactions of a non-cash nature and any
defereals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, i ing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

311 Inventories
Related lo real estate activities
Direct expenditure relating 1o ion activity is inventoned. Other expenditure (including borrowing cosis) duting consiruction period is inventoried to the
extent the expenditure is direetly atributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Other expenditure {inchuding burrowing costs)
incurred during the construction period which is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use is charged to the
statement of prefit and less, Direct end other expenditure is determined based on specific identificarion to the construction and reat estate activity. Cost incurred/
items purchased specifically for projects are taken as consumed as and when incurred/ received,

Work-in-progress - Read estate projects (including land i ¥): Represents cost incurred in respect of unsold acea of the real estate dewelopment projects or cost
incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognised. Real estate worksinsprogress is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value,

3.12 Impairment of assels
Noo-financial agsets
The Company at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an assst is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recaverable 2mount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assel’s or cash-generaling
unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is detesmined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely lmlepund-ent of thase from cther assets or Company's of assets, Where the carrylngamoJm of an asset or CGU mds its rechverable
amount, the nsset is considered impaired and is written down to arive at its bl In 1 value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their preseat value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tlme value of money and the nsks specific lo the asset,
In determining Fair value less casls of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an.
appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impal [eulafion on detailed budgets and f leulations which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-
generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and fi leulations are penerally covering a period of five years.

For asscts excluding geodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting dete to determine whether there is any indication that previeusly secognised impainnent
losses may no longer exist ov may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previousty
gnised impairment loss is d only if there has been a change in the pticns used to d ine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impaicment
Toss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the Gamying amouat of the asset does not exseed its resoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had ne impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the staterent of
profit and loss unless the acsel is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reverzal ie treated e a revaluation increase,

T

Financial asyets
The Company recognises loss allowances using the expeoted sredit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued throvgh profit or luss, The
Company tests for impairment using the ECL model for financial asscls such as loans and advances to b settled in cash.

Lass allowance for loans with no significant finangt it i3 7 d at an t equal to lifetime ECL. Life time ECL are the expested credit losses
resulting from all possible default cvents over the cxpcmcl Itfc of & financial instrument. The 12 month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results fiom
default evenls vn a financial instrument that are possible within 12 menths afier the reporting date,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recopnised during the period is recognised as incomefexpanse in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount
is reflected in a separate line in the PRL as an impairment gain or loss. For finaocial assets ] &t amortised cost, ECL is presented as an allowance which
reduces the net camrying amount of the financial asset '
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Notes to the financial staterents

3,13 Earnings per share '
The basic loss per share is computed by dividing the ret profit/ (foss) anributable to owner's of the Campany for the year by the weighted sverage number of equity
shares ourstanding during reponting period.
The number of shares used in computing diluted eamings/ (loss) per share comprises the weighted ge shares considered for deriving basic eamings/ (loss) per
shage and also the wcmhltd average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity sharas.
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issned at a later date. In computing diluted
eamings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and which either reduces eamings per share or inerease loss per shara are included,

3.14 Recenl accountiog proa ¢
i} Slaodards bsueddamreuded aud became effective:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified new standards or amendment to existing standards under Companies (Indian Acenunting Standards) Rules as issued from
time to time. The Company has applied following amendments for the first-time during the current year which are effactive from 1 April 2024,

Amendnients to Ind AS 116 » Lease liability in a sale and [eesehack
The amendtnents require an entity to recognise lease liability including variable lease payments which are ot linked 10 indax of a rate in a way it does not result into
gain on right of-use asset it retaina.

e amendments had no impact on the Company ‘s financial stalements.

Intreduction of Ind AS 117

MCA, notified Ind AS 117, a comprehensive stondard that prescnit gniti t and diselosure requir . 1o ovoid diversities in practice for
ac ing insurance tg and it applies to all compani ae toall " " regardless of the issuer. However, Ind AS 117 iz not applicable to the
entities which are insurance companies registered with IRDAL

The amendments bad ne impact on the Company”a financinl statcments,
ii) Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs netifies new standards or amendments 1o the existing standards. There is amendment I Ind AS 21 Eﬁects of Changes in Foreign
f Ranes™ such i would have been applicable from 01 April 2025,

The Effects of Changes i Forcign Exchange Rates specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot

hange Tate when exchangeahility is lacking The i alse require discl of information thal enables users of its financial statements to understand
how the not being exchangeable ifito the other cumency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s financial performance, financial pesition and cash
flows.

The amendments are effective for the period on of after 01 Apnl 2025, When applying the amendments, an entity cannot resiate comparative information.

The Company has reviewed ﬂie new pronouncement and based on its evaluation has determined that these emendments do not have a significant impact on the
C v's Financial Stal,

¥
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6 Investments

Particoiars Asat Asat
? March 31, 2028 March 31,2024

Unguoted
Investments carried at cost
Investment in eguity instruments of subsidiary company
- Saphire Realtors Private Limited - 496.24
[Nil (March 31, 2024 ; 49,499,900) equity shares of Rs 10 each, Fully paid-up]
[% of holding in subsidiary - Nil (March 31, 2024 = $9%))
Less: Provision for impairment - (117.58)
. 378,66

Nate:
{a} The Company has opted to zccount for investments in subsidiary at cost as per Ind-AS 27 'Separate financial statements’

Aggregate value of unguated investments - 496.24
Aggerate amount of impairment in valug of investment - (117.58)
Investment measured at cost - 378.66
Investment measured at fair value through profit or loss - =
Investment measured at fair value through OCT a &

(v} During the year, the Company has sold its investment in Saphire Realtors Private Limited for a consideration of Rs. 376.20, incurring a loss of
Rs.120.04. However, after considéring the reversal of loss on impairment of Rs. 117.58, the loss reported in the current year amounts to Rs.
246,

Other non-financial assets

Particulars . Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance Tax (net of provision for tax) 138 -
T — 138 =

& Inventory (Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

Particulars Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Work in progress - development of |easehold Jand ) 831.75 o 81892

: 2 831,75 818.

Note: The eost of inventory includas cost of leasehold land and development cost incurred towards Project Embassy Knowledge Park.

2 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars . As at » Asat
March 31,2015 March 31,2024
Balances with banks
= in current accounts 0120 047
0,20 0.47
10 Other finaocial assets
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Other receivahle
= from others 733 7.33
733 733
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11 Equity Share capital

Particulars : As at Asat X
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Authorized Capital !

50,000 (previous year: 50,0000 equity shares of Rs 10 each 0.50 0.50

Fssued, subseribed and fully paid-up capital
20,410 (previous year: 10,101) equity shares of Ks 10 each, fully paid-up 020 Q.10
020 0.10

(a) Equityshareholders holding more than 5 percent equity shares in the Company &

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
HAmE A Ul oke No of shares % holding No of shares % holding
Number of shares 2
NAM Estates Frivate Limited . . . 10,000 99.00%
Embassy Developments Limited 20410 100,00% - -
(b} Shareholding of Promoters :

, As at March 31, 3025 As at March 31, 2024
ek aF e thaxa el No of shares % holding No of shares % holding
Number of shares
NAM Estates Private Limited = . 10,000 99.00%
Embassy Developments Limited 20,410 100,00% - -

{¢) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year is as given below:

As at March 31, 20258 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares Amount No, of sharves Amoundi
Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning 10,101 0.10 10,101 0.10
of the petiod
Number of equity shares issued during the year 10,302 0.10 - "
Mum ber of equity shares cutstanding at the end of .
the year 20,410 0,20 10,101 0.10

{dy Rights, preferences and restrictinns attached 1o equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares baving par valie of Rs. 10. Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the ds of the Company as of the dnte of
the shareholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of cach share held for all matters submitted to vote in the sharcholders’ meeting, The Company declares and pays
dividend in Indian Rupces. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dircctors is subyect to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuring General Meeting.

On August 17, 2011 the Company, the equity shareholders and the holders of 5% fully and compulsorily convertible debentures {“investors™) have entered into a
subseription apreement ("the Apreement”) which spa:ilﬁgg the rights] restrictions and terms of equity charebolders ag well as del ¢ holders, the saltent features are " * |
given below: " 2

The Company shall not declare any dividends waless otherwise approved by the Board of Dircetors and/or sharcholders in accordance with the terms of the agreemenl,

Any distributable amownt will be distributed to the equity share holders and the holders of compulsorily convertible debentures in the manner agreed betwsen the
Company. the equity share halders and the debenture halders.

-

The equity share holders cannot transfer their shares to any person fill such time the invesiors hold any securities in the Company, unless the equity share holders obtain

the prior written per of the deb holders. H the equity share holders can sell up to a maximum of 10% of equity shares held by them, with the prior
written ent of debenture holders (which shall not be unreasonably withheld) subject to compliance with eertain specific performance conditions 23 mentioned in the
agreement. '

The equity share holders have the rght to nominate and appoint two Directors to the Board of Directors-and the debenture holders shall have the right tw nominate one nen-
retiving Dirstor to the Board of Diurestuss.

On September 25, 2024, the company. equity sharcholder and 5% fully and compulsary convertible debentures("investor") have entered into a securities purchase
agreement wherein 93 shares hetd by Onega Limited and & shares hedd by HDFC Bank Limiled and 27,79 20, 741CCD¥s held by Pollhater Investment Limited and
2,34,33,452 CCT)'s held by HDFC Bank Limited have heen trangferred to Embassy Property Developments Private Limited.

The company, Embassy Property Developments Private Limiled, HDFC Bank: Limited, Pollhater Investment Limited and Onega Limiled entered into termination
agreement dated Sepicmber 25, 2024 wherein all the agreemems executed amongst thern shall stand terminated.
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Notea to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 {continued)
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(e}

12

Buy back of shares and shares allotted by way of boaus shares and shares issued for consideration other than cash

The Company has not allotted any fully paid-up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has it bought back any class af equity shares or issued shares for consideration
other than cash during the period of five years unmediately preceding the balanee sheet date.

Onther equity
Particulars Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Reserve and surplus®
Secunties premium i 12,959.39 139.46
Retained carnings (12,563.30) (12,738.40)
At the end of the year 396,00 (12,618.94)

% Refer Statement of changes in equity for detailed movement in other equity balances.

Security preminm y
Securities premium is used ta record the premium reccived on issue of shares by the Company, The testrve <an be ulilised in acvordanve with the provision of setion
52(2) of Companics Act, 2013.

Retained earnings ) :
The cumulative loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Company is recognised and accumulated under the heading of retained eamings. At the end of the
year, the loss is iransferred from the statement of profit and loss (o the retained earnings account.

13 Current borrowings

(@)

(b)

Particulars Asal Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2024

Curtent maturitics of long term debl:

- 5% fully and compulsorily convertible debentures of Rs 10 each {Refer Note A below) - 13,117.74
Unsecured

= Tnter corporate deposit from holding company (Refer Note B below) . 276.G0 257.38

= Inter corporate deposit from related parmy(Refer Note B below) 124392 -

1,512.92 13,375.12

5% fully and compulsorily convertible debentures: Key terms '
Repayment terms and interest rate of debenturea

The debenrarcs shall carry interest at 5% per annwm on the principal amount till the date of conversion. Interest shall-be payable as an 31 March of each yenr (*Payment
date”). All payments of inerest rate shall be made net of any applicable withholding tax, payable in relation to such s, Tha ir is payable subject to availability
of distributable cash flow from the projects and the balance unpaid interest shall be sarried forward and paid on the next payment date,

The debentures shall be compulsorily converted inta equity shares i the following manner on expiry of March 31, 2025 (as per the nineth amendment dated September
25, 2024 to ¢lase 4(a) of Schedule 6 (Tenns of CCDs}) of the Secwrities Subseription and Sharcholders agreement (SSSHA) (September 30, 2023 {as per the eighth
amendment dated March 15, 2023 to clause 4(a) of Schedule 6 (Terms of CCDs) of the Securities Subscription and Sharcholders agreement) or in the event of default, as
defined in securities subscription and shareholders agreement dated August 17, 2011, whichever is carlier.

(i) At any time after the expiry of March 31, 2025 (September 30, 2023) in absence of event of default the Lolder of the debemtures shall be entitled o convert the
debentares inte’cquity shares such that the number of equity shares issued and alloited upon such conversion represents 18.59% of the share capital of the Company on a
fully diluted trasis as oo the date of conversion, )

(i) at amy time afier the occurrence of an event of default, the holders of the debentures shall be entitled to convert the debentures into equity shares such that the number
of equity shares issued and allotted on such conversion represents 51% of the share capital of the Company on a fully diloted basis as on the date of the conversion,

On July 13, 2020 the CCD holders have issued an ‘event of default' notice under the provisions of the Securities Subscription and Shacchiolders Agreement (39SHA) dated
August 17,2011, As per the terms of the CCD's, npon the occurrence of an event of default, the det ¢ holders will be cntitled o convert the debentures into equity
shares snch that it represents 51% of the share capital of the company, as stated above, The conversion shall be made effective upon issuance of the conversion notice.
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Subscquent to the event of defanlt notice being served, the Company, Embassy Property Developers Private Limited and CCD halders have ntered imio a Securities
Purchase Agreemcat, whereby EPDPL has agreed to buyout the CCDs for an agreed consideration, Pursuant to the above SPA, the CCD lolders issued 2 No Objection

" Certiffcate for the proposed merger of Nam Estates Private Limited with Indiabulls Realty Private Limited, As per the terms of SPA, the purchage of CCDs was fo be

completed by March 31, 2021 ("Closing Date”) which was subseqnently axtended to Jime 30, 2022 vide various amendments and agreements

On September 25, 2024, the company, EPDPL and 5% CCD holders have entered into a termination agr t desirous of terminating the previous agrecient i.¢, SPA .
Subsequent to the tenmination of the above SPA, EPDPL, the Company and CCD holders have entered into another agr {" Latest SPA®) for purchase of 93 Equity
Shares held by Onega Limited, 8 shar¢s held by HDFC Bank Limited de’??‘S' 20,741 CCDs held by Pollhater lnvestment Limited and 2,34,33,452 CCDS hetd by HDFC

Bank Limited as per the terms and conditions set qut in the Latest SPA

Parguant to all the parties carrying out their duties as per the tenns of the latest SPA, 93 shares held by Onega Limited and $ shares held by EIDFC Bank Limited and
27,79,20,741 CCDs held by Pollhater Investment Limited and 2,34,33,452 CCDs held by HDFC Bank Limited have been wansferred to Embassy Property Developments
Private Limited on September 27, 2024

While the CCDs are mandatorily sonvertible into cquity shaces at any time after the expiry of’ December 31, 2024 (as per the nineth amendment dated Seprember 25, 2024
to clausc 4(a} of Sehedule 6 {Temms of CCDs) of the Secuwiries Subscription and Shareholders agreement (SSSHA) (Seprember 39, 2023 (as per the eiphth amendment
dated March 15, 2023 to clause 4(a) of Scheduls 6 (Terms of CCDs) of the Securities Subscription and Shareholders agreement) or issuance of conversion notice which
ever catlier, the converston of CCDs into equity shares are considered as a means of settlement of the Liability and since EPDPL has a tight to convert the debentures into
equity shares equivalent to 51% of the company due to exislence of event of default, these CCDg are valued at a price equivalent to 51% of the fair value of the company
as per the fair valuation repart issued by independent valuer (Refer to note no 28).

In accordance with the requi of Guidenee Note on Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, classified as current borrowings in the previous year,

During the year eaded March 31, 2025, vide Secarities swap and subscription agreement, Embassy Property Developments Private: Limited swiapped its investment in the
equity shares aud CCDs of the Company with NAM Estates Private Limited,

Cn Januvary 24, 2025 NAM Estates Private Limited d with Embassy Develop Limited (Formetly known as Equinox India Developments Limited, and earlier
Indiabulls Res) Estate Limited). Embassy Developmmia Limited (Formerly known as Equnox India Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)
exercised their option to convert the CCDs into equity shares of the Company. Accordinghly the CCDs are converted into equity shares on January 23, 2025.

The interest on 3% fully and compulsorily convertible debentures of INR. 10 ¢ach is payable subject to availability of distributable cash flow from the projects and the
balance unpaid interest shall be carried ﬁmwa.rd and paid on the next payment date. The company has discharged accrued interest to CCD holders upto January 24, 2025,

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of debenture holder E inls &
No. of debentures s"::::;o" No. of debentures  Subscription Amount

Pallhater Investments Limited - - 27,79,20,741 277921
HDFC Bank Limited {Earlier HDFC Ventures Toustee
Company Limited on behalf of HDFC Investment

- - 23433452 23413
Trust)
Note B: The inter<corporate deposit from holding company is imerest free and is repaysble on demand.
Trade payables
Particulars : As at As at
: March 31, 2015 March 31,2024
Trade payables
= to micro enterprises and small enterprises (rafer nots 26) 034 -
- to creditors other than micro entcrprises and small exterprises 494 .
= 518 “
(i) Quistanding for following periods fram due date of payments .
Less than 1 year 1-2 years -3 years More than J years . Total
As at 31 March 2025
Dwes ta micro and small enterprises 0.34 - - - 0.34
Dues to creditors other than micro and small 4.94 & a 5 4,94
enerprises
Other financial Babilities
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest acerved and not due
=on 5% fully and compulsorily convertible debentures - 1,580.97

- on interest on inter cerperate deposit . 2623
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Gither liabilities !

Payable for exp towards investment property 48t 9.83
Other payables 4.19 4.71
IFL6 1,391.5§
16 Other current liabilities
Particalars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Stanitory dues RO7 15.84
807 15.84
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17

18

19

Other income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31.’ 2025 March 31, 2024
Reversal of fair valuation on financial liability(Refer Note 26C) 297.71 -
Profit on sale investment properties 58.53 -
156.24 P
Other expenses
Particufars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rates and taxes 0.80 0.34
Legal and professional (Refer Note no 19) 522 0.95
Rent 0.14 0.06
Loss on sale of investment 245 -
Fair valuation loss on financial liability (Refer Note no 26C ) - 66.46
Miscellaneous 2.02 43.81
10.63 111.62
Finance costs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest cost on financial liabilities f
- on debentures 121.37 150.68
- on inter corporate deposit 29.14 -
150.51 150.68

This space has been intentionaily lefi blank
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22

Contingeat liabilities and commitments (¢o the extent not provided for)
Ay at Asat
Do March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Contingent liabilities:
a) Claims against the Company oot acknowledged as debt - -
Capital commitments: 4
b) Estimnated savouit of contracts remnining to be excented on capital account (net of advaoces) and nat provided for 2062 23.20
Auditors remuneration included in Eal and gnfmn’mal chorges (excluding applicable Goods and Servieces tax)
For the year ended For the year caded
Partieul
T Mareh 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
As auditor
= gtatutory audit Q.60 0.60
060 0,60

Earniugs' (loss) per share
A, Basic earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity bolders by the weighted average number of equity sheres outstanding during the
year, Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit /(loss) atinbutable to equity holders (after adjusting for interest on the compulsorily
the weighted average number of oquity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average numbcr of equity shares that wauld be issued on conversion of all the

dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares,
The following reflects the income and share data used iin the basic and diluted EPS computations:

A, Basic and diluted sarnings per share
he ollowing table ses forth the computation of besie and diluted earnings : :

hla sk A
) by

i o For the yeor ended For the year ended
Facticalars il March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Profit/ {Loss) for the year attributable to equity sharehold 2. in millions 195.10 (379.88)
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs 10 each nsed for calenlation
of basle and diluted eamings per share Number 11,965 10,101
Peofit/(Loss} pes share 4 1630542 (37,608.61)
B Dilutive earnings per share

§ ) For the yeor ended For the year ended
Totalics Wi March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lass For the year attributable to equity shareholders 2. in millions 195,10 (374.88)
Add: Interest on compulsory convertible debentures 12137 150.68
Less: Reversal of Fair value on (financial liabiliy) (297,71} E
Add: Fair valuation Joss on financial liability T G646
Loss for the year 18.76 (16279
Weighted average number afequit] shares of Rs 10 cach used for calewlation
of basic eamings per share Nuamber L1563 1010
Add: Thlutive effect of convertible debentures §,445 10,307
We]_d'[t_ed average nuraber of equity shares af Rs 10 each usad for calevlstion 20410 20,408
of dilutive earnings per share
Loss per share, antl dilutive/dilutive - 1,567.80 (16,111.73)
Far the year ended March 7024: 301,354,193 compulsorily convertible debentures were excluded Fram the caleulation of diluted weighted g8 ber of equity shares ng

effect would have been anti=dilutive.
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23 Related parties disclosures

[0}

@

Names of related parties and description of relationship .

Enterprises and individuals where control exists
Holding company
Subsidiary company

Partncrship fivm | LLP in which a dircctor is a partner

Key maoagement persounel

Embuassy Developments Liméted

Saphire Realtors Private Limited (Up 10-30.12.2024)

Kam Realty Ventures LLP
CRE Developers LLP

Jitendia Virwani = Direclor
P R Ramakrishnan - Director  (upto
Decembar 03, 2024)

Prasad A Turamari - Director
(w .1 Seprember 30, 20243

Related Party transactions daring the year:

For the year ended Faor the year ended
Famanan March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on pulsorily convertible deb
Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 49.54 -
Embassy Developments Limted 0.41
Enterest on intercorporate deposit
Embassy Property Develoy Private Limited 29,14
Inter corporate doposit repaid /(received), net
Embassy Property Developments Private Limited (1,243.92) -
Embassy Developments Limited (18.62) (128.78)
Sale of land
CBE Developers LLF 100.52 -
Sale of Investments (shares)
Kan; Realty Ventures LLP 176,20 -

(ii1) Balances receivable from and payable to related parties
. As at ., Asat

Particulors & March 31, 2025 March3l, 2024
Loter corporate loan (taken)
Embasay Developrments Limited 276.00 257.38
Embassy Property Developments Private Limied 1,25392 -




Suntoit Developments Private Limited

CIN: U70200KA2MIFTCO57054

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 {continued)
{ All amounts in T millions unless otherwise stated)

4 Investment property

Reconciliation of carrying amount for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Tangible Lease hold Land

Particutars (refer note iv Total
Frechold land helow)

Balance as at April 01, 2023 42.39 1,943.13 1,985.52
Additions s - s
Deletions - (23.67) (23.67)
Reclass to inventory 5 (811.81) (811.81)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 42,39 1,107.65 1,150.05
Balance ag at April 01, 2024 4239 1,107.65 1,150.05
Aulditions - - -
Deletions {42.39) - {42.39)
Reclass to inventory - - .-
Balance as at March 31, 2025 - L107.65 £,107.66
Balance as at April 1, 2023 - - -
Depreciation for the year - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - - -

Balance as at 1 April 2024 ' = & s

Depreciation for the year - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 : - - -
Carrving amount: (Nef)

As at March 31,2025 - 1,107.65 1,107:66
As at March 31,2024 T o239 L107.65 1,150.05
Fair value {refer note iii below'

Balance as at March 31, 2025 - 18,273.10 16,273.10
Balance as at March 31,2024 72.10 16,331,66 16,403.76
Notes :

i) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for invesfment praperty March_i?l, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rental income derived from investiment propertics B F o

Less: [hreet operating expenses from property that gmefated rental income
(including repairs and maintenance} " -

Less: Direct operating expenses from property that did not generate rental income

(including repairs and maintenanoe} 030 028
Loss arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect expenses (030) (0.28)
Less: Depreciation and amartisation . ”
Loss ariging fram investment properties {0:30) (0.28)

it) Restriction on realisability
The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property.

ii) Fair value

The fair value of investment property has been determined by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate recognised profassional
qualifications and recent experience In the location and category of the property being valued. The independent valuers provide the fair value of the
investment property annually, The said valuer is registered valuer under rule 2 of Companies (repistered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017.

The fair value measurcment for all of the investment property has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs 1o the valuation technique
used.
For the fres hold land, the extornal independent valucr has used "Direct Comparison” method approach for assessing the fair value of the property,

The "Direct Comparison Approzch” is hased on the comparison of the property to similar positioned properties in the region. Wherein, the property is
accorded premium / discounts based un various factors to arrive at achievable market value of the property as on the date of valuation. The result is the
best estimate of value, the valuer can attributc and is an estimate, This methodology uscs market information such as quoted / transacted value of various
comparable.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continned)

(All amounts in T millions unless otherwise stated)
Far the leasehold land, the external independent valuer has used "Disaounted cash flow methodology" method approach for asscssing the fair value of the
property.

The "Discounted cash flow methodology" is based upon an estimate of future results. The methodolagy beging with a set of assumption ag to the
projected income and expenses of the property. The result is the best estimate of value, the valuer can attribute and is an estimaie. This methodelogy uses
market information such as quoted / transacted value of various comparable. Using this valuation method, future cash flows fiom the property are
forecasted using precisely stated assumptions. This method allows for the explicit modelling of income associated with the property. These fanre
fimancial benefits are then discounted to a present day value at an appropriate discount rate,

{iv) During the FY" 22-23 KIADB has allotted land in favour of the company and the company has laken possession of the land vide possession csrtificate
dated Decenber 12, 2022,

(v) During the FY 22-23, the Comprny entered into lcase cum sale deed with KIADD dated November 09, 2023 whercin utilisation of land is agreed
between both the parties. .

(a» 116 acre 25 guntas shall be utilised for commercial purpose only.

() 85 acre 19 guntas shall be utilised for residential pirpoge only,

(¢} Above said land is leased out for a period of 10 years and rent of Rs.0.20 millicns shall be payable on annual basis,

5 Investment property under development *

Particalars Amonnt
Gross amount.

Balance as at April 01, 2023 . . 25,34
Additions 825
Deletions (25.39
Balance as at March 31, 2024 525
Balance as at April Of, 2024 . 825
Additions 825
Deletions -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 16,50
Carrving amount {net):

As st March 31, 2024 815
As at March 31, 2025 16.50

* Investment property under development pertains to development of commercial leasing space.

Investment properties under development ageing schedule:

Amount in IPUD for the period of
Status . Less than 1:2 yesry 28 yeunk More than 3 Total
: Lyear years :

As at March 31, 2024 ’
Projects in progress

Embassy Knowledge Park 825 . . - 825

‘ As at March 31,2025

[Projects in prograss

Embassy Knowledge Park 8.25 B.25 16,50
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24 Tax expense

A. No income tx exp wig recognised in the of profit and loss mecount.

B. Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate

Particulars 1-7;1- the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2035 March 31, 2024
Accounting profi/ {loss) before income tax 19510 (379.88)
Tromestic tax rals 25.17% 25.17%
Tax on accouting profiv{loss) 48.11 (95.62)
Ind AS notional adjustments (74.93) 16.73
Amannt insdmizsible O.da 3016
allowance w 40{z)(ia) - (35.93)
Taux using the Company's domcatic tix rate 2538 B4.65
Eftect of
Current yeat [osses for which no deferred fax asset is ised {25.38) {84.65)
= Income tax expense = -

C. Uarecopnised deferred tax nssets i
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the Following items, t it is oot probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the Company can use the benefits therefran;

Partigulars Azut Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unused tax losses 2538 391,88

5,38 391,88
15 Segment reporting -

An cperdting segment is a component of the Company that engages in business sctivities from which it may eam revenues and ineur expenses and for
which dF fi fal infe ion is available The operating ing results are reviewed by the Chief Operating Dec:smn Maker
(Beard of Di ) W make decisi llmutrcsmrmmhenﬂmmdmﬂl_eugmmunndamlﬂlﬂrp:. Tho Company’'s busi
activities fall within one component {namely, "development, rental and mei of serviced residence”). H , the Company hes nat

commenced its opemtions as at the yeac end,

26 The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro
. and Small Enterprises should menrion [n their correspondence with its customers the Entreprencurs Memorndum Number as allocated after filing
of the Memorandum in accerdance with the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ¢‘the MSMED Act). Accordingly, the
disclosure in respect of the amounts payable 1o such enterprises as at March 31, 2025 has been made in the financial based on infe
ived and available with the Company. Fusther (n view of the Management, the impactof interest, ifany, thatmay be payable in accordance with |
the provisions of the MSMED Act is aot expected to be material. The Company does not have any interest dues to micro and small enterprises as at
March 31, 2025 | the detaile of principal payment has been mads below:

Particulary Asat March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024

‘I'h:pm:cnpal amount zud the interest due therepn remauml\g unpaid w0 any supplier a3 at the end

of each accounting year;

=) {1) Peincipal 034 -
(1) Interest i »

{b) The muut ocf interest paid by the Company in texms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and - -

Bedi Development Act, 2006, aloog with the amounts of the payment made to the

supplier Iaeyund tha appointed day during the year®;

(i) Interest - o
{ii) Payment = Pos
(¢} The amoun: of interest due and payable for the period of delay in waking payment {which - -
have been paid bul beyond the appainted day durms the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterp lopment Act, 2006
' {d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year - §

e} The amount of farther interest ramaining due and paynble sven in the succeeding years, antil - “
such date when the incerest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose

of disallowaoce of a deductible expendinae under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medinm

Euterprises Development Act, 2006

* no interest has been paid by the company during the year

37 Expenditure on Corporate Social Res ponsibility activities

Since the Company does mot meet the criteria specified in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Compzny is not required 10 spend 2ny amouat
an ectivitios related to corporats sosinl respansibilicy for the year ended March 31, 2025.
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28 Financial mstruments - Fair value measurements and category

A. Accounting elassifications and fair value
The carying value and fair valoe of inateial instruments by categones ars as below,

Carrying valoe Fair valee
Particuls As ot As at As at As at
b 12 March 31, 2028 March 31,2024 March 31,2028 March 31, 2024
Financisl assets measured at amertived cost
Orther financial assers 1.33 1.3 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 0.20 0.47 - "
Total assets .53 .80 - -
Carrying value Fairvalue
Bartisnla As at As at Asat Az at
e March 31, 2026 March 31, 2024 Morch 31, 2035 March 31,2024
: Financisl Babilities measured at ammortized coit
Barrowangs 151992 25738 " "
Other finansial habilities 15.26 1,591.56 " %
Fis 191 liabilities d at FVTPL
_Borrowings - 13,117.74 - 13,017.74
Total Linbilities 1,555.18 14 266.68 - 13117.74
The managernent has assesied that fir value of ather firancial assets, cach and cash equivaleats, b ings, other il liakilities app

their earnying amounts dus to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

B. Fair vakue hiezarehy

The seotion explains the judg and esti raade in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:

a) recognited and measured at fair value

b} measured at amortised eostand for whish fair values are disclosed in the financial

To provide an indication about the relinbility of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the
three [evels preseribed under the Locounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned belowr

Lewel 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in astive markets. for identical assets or Gabilites,

Level 2 ~Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level [ thet are observable for the asset or.]ilbél'r:y, either directly (i.e. a5 prices) or indirectly
(Le. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or Liabilities thatare not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no munsfers between Level 1, Level Z ar Level 3 during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

C. Accounting dlagsification and fair value

The 5% fully and compulsorily convertible deb: has been d into Equity Shares during the current year

i Fair Value as ne
Particulars March 35, 2024 Valuation rechoique

’h
% Fair valuation report
5% fully and compulsorily conventible debennires . 13,017,74 ;:d‘:::denl \v'dl;:cr.(i:;:'
note 134)
29 Leages

(a} Company asa lessee

7 As at At
Farisutiny 31 March 202§ 31 March 2024
Carrying value of Right of Use Asset disclosed
- o Investment property 1,107.65 1.107.65
Deprecietion charge on Right-of-use assets
- ot Investment property - =

Cozrying value of lease liabiliy - -

Low value lease ents chn: 1o profit and loss accaunt 0.14 .08
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29 Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments=
- eredit risk

- market risk

- liquidity risk

Risk management framework
The Company's board of directors has averall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.

The Company’s risk g 1t policies are cstablished to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policics and systems arc reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty 1o a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from Company’s cash and cash equivalents and other receivables from related party. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum
credit exposure. ’

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents of Rs.0.20 millions at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs 0.47 millions). The cash and cash equivalents are mainly
held with banks which are highly rated, The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of
countesparties.

(ii) Other receivables

‘The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of other receivables based on the past and the recent
collection trend. As on March 31, 2025 - Nil (March 31, 2024 - Nil).

{b) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates, will affect the Company's income and its holdings of
financial instruments. The abjective of market risk rmanagement is to manage and contral market risk exposures within acceptable paramsters, while oplimising the
retumn.

(i) Currency risk
The Company vperates domestically. As on March 31, 2025 the exposure towards forelgn currency is Rs Nil.

(il) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s sxposure (o
the risk of chapges in market interest rates relates {5 nil as it does not have any debt obligations with floating interest rates.

(¢ ) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its finan¢ial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another finnncial asset, The Company’s approach to managing the liquidity is ta ensurc, as far as possible, that it will have sufficicnt liguidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 1o the Company's reputation.
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Exposure to liquidity risk
The table below details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The contractual cash flows reflect the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based en the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

Contractual cosh flows

eul ;
Razteincs KRy loig el Total 1yearorless 1todyears 3toSyears  more than § yrs.
March 31, 2025
Ime_r-coqmate deposit taken - nil interest 1,519.92 151992 1,519.92 - - -
bearing
Other financial fiabilities 35.26 35.26 35.26 - . =
1,555.18 1,955.18 1,555.18 ’ - = a
5 Contractual cash flows
Partiplsrs Curylng valus Total 1yearorless 1I1to3years JtoSyears  mare than 5 yrs,
March 31, 2024
Imer-corporate deposit taken - nil interast ; = e “
bearing 25738 25738 257.38
Other financial lfabilities 1,591.56 1,591.56 1,591.56 - - -
1,848.94 1,84894 1,848.94 ) = =

30 Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company maonitors capital using a ratio of net adjusted debt to equity. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising obligations,
trade payables and other liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity. The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity
ratio at March 31, 2025 was as follows.

The Company's adjusied net.debt to equity ratio is analysed as follows:

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Total liabilities 1,563.53 14,682 .52
Less: Cash and bank balances - (0.20) 0.47)
Adjusted debt 1,563.33 14,982.05
Adjusted total equity 396,29 (12,618.84)

Adjusted debt to adjusted equity ratio T 396 (1.19)
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31 Ratio Analysis and its elements

Reason for

Eatio Mumeratar Denominator March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024 % Change varibnce
Current ratia Crrrent Assets Current Lishilities G54 0406 800.00%  Notel
Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 3.84 -l.06 -462.26%  Notel

Eamings for debt service =Net

profit after taxes + Non-cash Debt service = Interest & Lease
Debt Service Coverage ratio  operating expenses Payments + Principal Repayments .68 -1.30 4769 Mot
Renum on Equity ratio et Profits after taves Average Shareholder’s Equity o0 002 -250000%  Nota2
Inventary Turnaver ratio Cost of goeds sold Average Inventory 0.00 0.00 -

Met credit purchases = Gross credit
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio  purchases - purchase retum Average Trade Payables - - -
Trade Receivable Tumover Net credit Sales = Gross ecedit Sales -
Ratio Sales retum Average Trade Reccivables - - -

Working capitel = Cumrent asscts -
Net Capital Twnover Ratio Not sales = Total sales - sales retum  Cunveut libilitics - - -
Wet Profit 1atio Net Profit Net sales = Tote] sales - sales retun - - -
) Profit befbre exceptional items, tax

Renn on capital employed  and finance cost Netwvorth + Debt 018 (0.15) 222200  Notel
Retzm on Invesmment Interest (Finance Income) Averape [nvestment - - -

Nete 01 Variaree is due fo reduction in current bomowings
Naote 02: Variance is due 1 reduction in expenses

32 (ther Statutary Information

(i} The Company does not Imn: any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(if) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off:
(iii) The Company do¢s not have any charges or satisfaction which is yat to be registersd with ROC beyond the statutory peried,

{iv)The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Curency during the financial vear.

{¥) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other personfs) or entity(ies), including Foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary
shall:

- directly or indireetly lend or invest ih other persons ar entities identified in ary manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Benediciaries) or
- provide any guarantes, security or the like to or on behalf of the Liltimate Beneticiaries

(vi} The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), mcluding foreign entities (Finding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that

the Company shall:

= directly or indirectly lend or invest in otber persons or entities identified in any wanner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Uliimate Bepeficiaries) or
- provide any guarantee, security ot the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The Company have not any such ansastion which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(viii) The Company has not been declared 2s wilfil defaulter by ary bank of finansial institition or ather lender,
(ix) The company has complied with number of layers of investment in siksidiarics.
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